Authority: Toronto and East York Community Council
Item TE13.8, as adopted by City of Toronto Council on
February 26, 2020

CITY OF TORONTO
Bill 1095
BY-LAW -2020

To amend former City of Toronto By-law 91-91, being a by-law to designate the property
at 197 King Street East as being of cultural heritage value or interest, by revising the
reasons for designation.

Whereas the Ontario Heritage Act authorizes the Council of a municipality to enact by-laws to
designate real property, including all buildings and structures thereon, to be of cultural heritage
value or interest; and

Whereas authority was granted by Council of the City of Toronto to designate the property at
197 King Street East as being of cultural heritage value or interest; and

Whereas Council of the City of Toronto enacted By-law 91-91 to designate the property as being
of cultural heritage value or interest; and

Whereas Council of the City of Toronto at its Council Meeting on February 26, 2020 adopted the
amendment to By-law 91-91, to update and revise the reasons for designation; and

Whereas the amended reasons for designation are set out in Schedule A to this by-law; and

Whereas the Council of the City of Toronto has caused to be served upon the owners of the land
and premises known as 197 King Street East and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust, Notice of
Intention to amend By-law 91-91, and has caused the Notice of Intention to amend to be posted
on the City's web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162,
Notice, Public, Article 1l, 8 162-4.1, Notice requirements under the Ontario Heritage Act; and

Whereas no notice of objection was served upon the Clerk of the City of Toronto;
The Council of the City of Toronto enacts:

1. City of Toronto By-law 91-91 is hereby amended by replacing the Statement of
Significance/Reasons for Designation in Schedule B thereto with the Statement of
Significance/Reasons for Designation appended hereto as Schedule A.

2. The City Solicitor is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the
property described in Schedule B to this by-law in the proper Land Registry Office.

3. The City Clerk is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be served upon the owners
of the property located at 197 King Street East as set out in Schedule A to this by-law and
on the Ontario Heritage Trust, and to cause notice of this by-law to be posted on the
City’s website for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162,
Notice, Public, Article I, 8 162-4.1, Notice requirements under the Ontario Heritage Act.
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Enacted and passed on December , 2020.

Frances Nunziata, John D. Elvidge,
Speaker Interim City Clerk

(Seal of the City)
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SCHEDULE A

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
REASONS FOR DESIGNATION
197 KING STREET EAST

Nealon House

City of Toronto By-law 91-91 designating the property at 197 King Street East under Part 1V,
Section 29 of the Act is revised to update the cultural heritage values and attributes in accordance
with the 2005 amendments to the Act. The property containing the building known historically
as the Nealon House meets Ontario Regulation 9/06 of the Act, the provincial criteria prescribed
for municipal designation, under all three categories of design, associative and contextual value.

Description

Located on the south side of the street between Frederick Street (east) and George Street (west),
the property at 197 King Street East contains a four-storey commercial building that was
constructed in 1888 as a hotel named the Nealon House after its owner, grocer James Nealon.
Following Nealon’s untimely death, the property was acquired in 1890 by Daniel and John
Kennedy, who continued to operate the hotel. The property remained in continuous use as a
hotel and a tavern for nearly a century.

The property at 197 King Street East was listed on the City of Toronto Inventory of Heritage
Properties (now known as the Heritage Register) in 1984 and designated under Part IV, Section
29 of the Ontario Heritage Act in 1991 by By-law 91-91. The property is identified as a
contributing heritage property in the St. Lawrence Neighbourhood Heritage Conservation
District, which is under appeal in 2019.

Statement of Significance

The property at 197 King Street East has cultural heritage value for its design as a well-crafted
late-19th century commercial building with decorative detailing inspired by the most popular
architectural styles of the late Victorian era. The Nealon House draws upon the Romanesque
Revival, Renaissance Revival and Italianate styles in a design that is distinguished by the
decorative stone and brickwork, oversized bay window, elaborate cornice and distinctive corner
tower.

The Nealon House is valued for its association with the development, evolution and significance
of the St. Lawrence neighbourhood as it evolved from its origins as “Old Town,” survived the
Great Fire of 1849 as the commercial and institutional heart of Toronto, and withstood the
economic downturn of the area in the 20th century before it was revitalized in the 1960s.
Located within the original boundaries of the Town of York on the community’s “Main Street”
where it replaced an earlier hotel and store, the Nealon House remained in continuous service as
a hotel and a tavern for nearly a century.

Contextually, the property at 197 King Street East supports and maintains the historical character
of the St. Lawrence Neighbourhood as it evolved in the 19th and 20th century from its origins as
the Town of York to a mixed-use community highlighted by institutional landmarks that include
St. James’ Cathedral, St. Lawrence Hall and the St. Lawrence Market. The Nealon House is
historically and visually linked to its setting within the original 10-block townsite established in
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1793 and on Toronto’s original “Main Street” where it is part of the important collection of
surviving 19th century commercial buildings on King Street East that are recognized on the City
of Toronto’s Heritage Register. With its scale, vintage and decorative features, the Nealon
House complements the Christie, Brown and Company Biscuit Factory (1874 with subsequent
additions) at 200 King Street East, opposite, which was restored and adaptively reused as George
Brown College’s St. James Campus and designated under Part 1V, Section 29 of the Ontario
Heritage Act.

Heritage Attributes
The heritage attributes of the Nealon House at 197 King Street East are:

e The setback, placement and orientation of the building on the south side of King Street East
between Frederick (east) and George (west) streets

e The scale, form and massing of the four-storey rectangular-shaped plan

e The brick cladding with the brick, stone, terra cotta, wood and metal detailing

e The roof, which is flat at the north end where the bracketed metal cornice marks the north
end of the roof facing King Street East and the flat-roofed tower on the northwest corner has
round-arched openings with decorative detailing (north and west) complementing the
principal (north) elevation (the original lantern has been removed)

e The principal (north) elevation facing King Street East, which is organized into four bays by
brick pilasters with brick and stone detailing (the pilasters have been altered in the first
storey)

e On the north elevation, in the first (ground) storey, the main entrance, which is elevated in
the second bay from the left (east) and contains a single wood door with glass inserts (the
transom above the door and the adjoining storefront to the east and west have been altered),
the secondary entrance in the left (east) bay with the wood door, and the open carriageway in
the right (west) bay, which is flat-headed at the north end on King Street and round-arched at
the south end

e In the upper three stories of the north elevation, the flat-headed window openings, including
the oversized recessed bay window that extends across the centre two bays, with the stone
lintels and sills, the round-arched tympana over the fourth-storey openings incorporating
terra cotta detailing (excluding the opening in the left or east bay), the spandrels with the
basketweave brickwork in the fourth storey, the panels with the corbelled and decorative
brickwork beneath all of the window openings, and the terra cotta panel with the caricature
above the window opening in the fourth storey, left or east bay (some of the openings contain
original wood windows)

e On the rear (south) elevation, which is accessed through the carriageway, the round-arched
window opening in the first storey (the east half of the south elevation is covered by the four-
storey south wing)

The east and west side elevations are concealed by the neighbouring buildings, apart from the
fourth storey with the remnants of painted signage. The rear (south) elevation of the main
building (apart from the first-storey round-arched opening) and the west and south elevations of
the south wing have round-arched and flat-headed openings, some of which have been altered.
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SCHEDULE B
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PIN 21094-0180 (LT)

PART OF TOWN LOTS 18 AND 19, SOUTH SIDE OF KING STREET, TOWN OF YORK
TORONTO PLAN, AS IN CA266048

City of Toronto and Province of Ontario

Land Titles Division of the Toronto Registry Office (No. 66)
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